
MINUTES OF THE KENT COUNTY LEVY COURT 
BUSINESS MEETING 

KENT COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX 
555 BAY ROAD, DOVER, DE 

LEVY COURT CHAMBER, ROOM 203 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2018 

Call to Order 

The Business Meeting of the Kent County Levy Court was called to order at 
7:00p.m. by President Banta. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

The Invocation was led by Mr. Howell and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by 
Mr. Angel. 

Moment of Silence for our Troops 

A moment of silence was observed for our Troops and led by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

Allan F. Angel 
Eric L. Buckson 
James E. Hosfelt, Jr. 
Glen M. Howell 
Terry L. Pepper 
George W. Sweeney, Sr. 
P. Brooks Banta 

Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Commissioner 
Vice President 
Commissioner 
President 

There are seven (7) Commissioners present at Roll Call. 

Adoption of Agenda 



M-18-196 

M-18-197 

M-18-198 

2 10/23/2018 

Motion was made by Mr. Buckson; seconded by Mr. Angel to remove Item #1 
under NEW BUSINESS, Mr. Banta: Communication and Recommendations 
from the Kent Economic Partnership; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Motion to approve the Agenda as amended was made by Mr. Sweeney; seconded 
by Mr. Angel; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

CONSENT AGENDA 18-14 
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and/or non-controversial and 
will be acted upon by a single roll call vote of the Levy Court. There will be no 
separate discussion of these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in which 
event the items shall be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately under New Business. 

• Approval of Levy Court Business Meeting Minutes ofTuesday, 
October 9, 2018 

• Items from October 16,2018 Committee Meetings: 
o P18-04 Kent County Levy Court Proposed NEW Policy §27-2 

Kent County Lifesaving Award 
o P18-03 Kent County Levy Court Policy Amendment §27-1 Kent 

County Medal 
o Hilltop Area Septic Elimination Project- Teal Construction Final 

Change Order 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda 18-14 was made by Mr. Pepper; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas.* 

*Mr. Sweeney noted the new Kent County Lifesaving Award for those who go 
above and beyond to save a life, stating it was a great thing and he wished it was 
more public. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Resolution 3716, Retirement of Christopher K. Austin 

Whereas, the retirement of Christopher K. Austin, an employee of Kent County, 
State of Delaware, from his duties as Plant Superintendent, Department of Public 
Works, Wastewater Facilities Division, presents a suitable opportunity for 
expressing the esteem in which we hold Christopher K. Austin, as a good and 
faithful public servant. 

Therefore, Be It Resolved that the County of Kent express its warmest 
appreciation and thanks to Christopher K. Austin for the able and loyal manner in 
which he performed his public duties. 

Be It Further Resolved that this resolution be his evidence of a right to the 
pension provided by the Kent County Employees' Retirement Program; and that 
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this Resolution be and hereby is incorporated into the official minutes of the 
October 23, 2018 meeting of the Kent County Levy Court. 

Motion to approve Resolution 3716 was made by Mr. Angel; seconded by 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll Call vote seven (7) yeas. 

Mr. Austin joined the Commissioners and County Administrator at the front for 
presentation of this Resolution, photos and congratulatory remarks. 

Mr. Banta: *INAUDIBLE* 

Mr. Pepper: You've done an outstanding job in your time with the County. Wish 
you luck ... better luck and just appreciate everything you've done for the County 
while you've been here. Being any kind ofmanager. . .it's not always easy but 
you seem to have figured out how to do it. We appreciate that. Thank you and 
best of luck to you. 

Mr. Angel: Yes, good luck to you. Seems like you're too youthful still to retire 
on us, so, I mean if you ever decide to change your mind you still have time. Is 
the wife here? Is the "honey do" list long? Okay, well never mind, I don't want 
to get in between that. Best of luck to you sir, and enjoy your retirement. 

Mr. Buckson: Chris, it's certainly an honor to be here and wish you all the best. 
You've certainly earned it and I wouldn't listen to what they're saying. Ifyou've 
got a chance to go, get it done man. I really do wish you all the best. Thank you. 

Mr. Sweeney: Chris, congratulations and I was going to ask if your wife had a 
"honey do" list ready for you ... keep him busy until you get ready to retire. That's 
all you have to do. And by then he'll have your "honey do" list ready for you. 
Congratulations, you've been a great asset to the County. Congratulations, and 
like I said, I wish I was you and looking at my next adventure. 

Mr. Howell: Appreciate your 13 years of service, it's a major milestone and just 
wish you the best in the future. Hope that neck heals real quick. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Thank you for your years of service to the County. We wish you 
well in retirement and obviously if there's anything we can do for you please let 
us know. Thank you. 

Mr. Petit de Mange: You here that, Diana? Get him on speed dial and call him at 
any time. Chris, just congratulations, you were a great employee here at the 
County, set a great example. On behalf of all your fellow County employees, I 
just want to extend a hand of congratulations. 

Diana Golt: Well, I just wanted to relate some of the items that Chris would 
cover in our Staff meetings on Monday morning. Chris does a lot of work with 
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our SCADA system, Supervisory Computer Aided Data Acquisition. Also works 
with our Solar Field so he's a superintendent of the plant but his background is 
electronics. When he would describe what he was doing for work his favorite 
saying was "you were stomping," that's how he described the work that he was 
doing. Chris kept busy and helped keep the SCADA system running and helped 
implement the latest upgrades in software that we just did. Thank you. 

Mr. Austin: I do appreciate the opportunity to give back to my community, I've 
lived here most of my life born and raised. I did enjoy this. I work with a good 
bunch of people, over the years we got a really good crew together. Everybody's 
doing fine so hopefully they'll be fine without me. *INAUDIBLE* It's been fun. 
Thank you very much guys. 

Mr. Banta: *INAUDIBLE* 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Kent County Code Amendment 

Mr. Hosfelt: 
1. Ordinance LC18-16, An Ordinance Amending The Code of Kent 

County, State ofDelaware, Volume I, Chapter 128 Fees, §128-45, 
Receiver of Taxes, B. Monitions 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LC18-16 

IN FAVOR- None 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Ordinance LC18-16 

Mr. Hosfelt: I'd like to Move in for adoption Ordinance LC 18-16, an Ordinance 
Amending the Code ofKent County, State of Delaware, Volume I, Chapter 128, 
Fees, § 128-45, Receiver of Taxes, specifically paragraph B. Monitions; seconded 
by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes and I want to recognize that this is not a fee. Commissioner 
Sweeney, are you going to weigh in on that? 

Mr. Sweeney: *INAUDIBLE* 
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Mr. Buckson: Well then I'm going to leave it. I'm going to leave it for you to 
handle and I'm just going to say yes, based on Commissioner Sweeney's 
comments. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes. 

Mr. Howell: Yes. 

Mr. Pepper: Absent 

Mr. Sweeney: So, thank you Mr. Buckson for allowing me to do this. This is 
a ... what was in our ordinance prior to this was a set fee for filing a monitions 
against people to collect their taxes. That is no longer a fee set by Kent County. 
That fee has always been set by Superior Court and all we do is modify this 
ordinance every year to whatever Superior Court asks us to do. So now what the 
ordinance says is, it is set at whatever Superior Court says it is. That's what we're 
moving forward. So, we no longer ... and have nothing to do with setting this fee, 
so my answer's yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 

Roll Call reveals six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. Ordinance LC18-16 has been 
approved. 

PETITIONS FOR CONDITIONAL USE REQIDRING 
REQIDRING SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

Sarah Keifer stated these Public Hearings are being conducted for the purpose of 
giving the citizens of the County the opportunity to present testimony on the 
application and ordinances that are before the Levy Court. 

Everyone will have a chance to speak. All statements are to be made from the 
podium at the front of the room. For the record, please give your name and 
address. Copies of any written statements or exhibits used during the hearing 
should be presented to for identification and inclusion in the record. 

For each application before the Levy Court: 

1. The President of Levy Court will introduce the application; 

2. The Levy Court will then receive testimony from those in favor; 

3. Testimony will then be received from those who may be opposed. 
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4. After everyone has had an opportunity to speak, the hearing on the 
application will be closed and the Levy Court will then take what action it 
deems appropriate. 

Levy Court's decision will be based upon public hearing testimony given at this 
meeting and a recommendation submitted to the Levy Court by the Regional 
Planning Commission. I would ask that that recommendation be included, by 
reference, in the permanent record of the meeting established by the Clerk of the 
Peace. 

The Public Notice ofthis Hearing was published in the October 5, 2018 edition of 
the Delaware State News. 

Mr. Angel: 
1. Application #/Name: CS-18-07 Meyer & Meyer, Inc.; Applicant & 

Owner: Meyer & Meyer, Inc.; Zoning District/Proposed Use: BG (General 
Business) I Child Care Center; Area & Location I ID#: 1.2992± acres on 
northwest comer of North DuPont Hwy (US Rt. 13) and Rose Bowl Rd. 
(Co. Rd. 154), south of Cheswold I LC-00-046.04-01-23.00-00001 

Ms. Keifer: The first application before the Levy Court is CS-18-07; it's a 
Conditional Use Site Plan for a childcare center. The site is zoned BG (General 
Business); it's located inside the Growth Zone. It is just about 1.3 acres on the 
northwest comer of US 13 and Rose Bowl Road, south of Cheswold. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony on this application at their 
October 4th hearing and at their October 11th business meeting voted unanimously 
to recommend conditional approval. The specific conditions are listed in your 
Staff report from the Regional Planning Commission. In particular, the 
recommendations have to do with the fayade of the building, most notably that 
facing Route 13, signage, limiting the use of the second story because of the 
limitation on parking and the installation of a bike rack as well as a shelter at the 
existing bus stop. Again, those were conditions suggested by the Regional 
Planning Commission. It does come with a recommendation for approval. I'm 
happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-07 

IN FAVOR 

Peter Meyer, 1562 Mendenhall Mill Road, Hockessin, DE: I was here last week 
with the petition. This particular site we want to ... I own the land right now but 
we want to turn it into childcare ... a learning center. It's a little different than a 
daycare center. This will be our second site. Our current site right now is 
licensed for 200 and we are, right now, run about 182 children at that site. This 
site would be a little smaller. It's going to be licensed for about 163 and what I 
did was, I took the meeting last week pretty serious, so I brought some plans for 
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you so that way maybe we can clarify some of the questions that the Regional 
Planning Commission members had and I wanted to maybe talk about some of the 
conditions if that would be okay. Can I share this with you? 

Mr. Banta: Yes. 

Mr. Meyer: So on the first page is the actual elevations. The Planning 
Commission had some questions about the east side elevation being similar to 
look like a front, so I asked my architect over the last week to get the drawings in 
for you. The south side, it will be the actual entrance so we have to come off the 
Rose Bowl Boulevard because we aren't actually able to come off 13 because of 
DelDOT' s requirements. The second page is the north and the western elevations. 
The northern elevation is the secondary egress off the second floor that the 
Regional Planning Commission had some questions about. What I did was I went 
back and page 3 and page 4 in the brochure are floor plans so I was hoping 
to clarify that for everybody. The way we designed the buildings is the first 
floor is all for childcare use. We try to maximize the floor plan which is about 
10,000 square foot. All our operations with the exception of the first office in the 
front are upstairs. So our mechanical rooms are upstairs, the heating vents will be 
upstairs. There's a resource room and a storage unit upstairs for the teachers and 
basically what we do is ... we have childcare that we have a learning curriculum 
that is wrapped up from .. .into the children's programs from age 1 thru ... before 
and after school care. So the upstairs, I don't know why they would not want a 
secondary means of egress from the back, but the reasoning for the steps on the 
back was for fire prevention, in case something were to happen. The next page is 
just a little bit .. .I just wrote down the responses. We talked about the second 
floor. Basically, it's for staff more than anything else. They had some questions 
about the parking and so what I did was, I just put the current centers down; the 
enrollment and their current parking situation. There's plenty of space here. We 
have 37 spaces right now. Our larger center only has 42. Most learning centers 
are busy from drop-off from 7 to 9, 7 to 10 and then pick-up's typically 4 to 6. So 
you really don't have a lot of parents staying there so the parking really isn't an 
issue. I mentioned on the page also about ... there's currently a bus pick-up at my 
location, it's just a sign; it's not a bus shelter. The Planning Board wanted me to 
put a shelter there. I don't have a problem with that but from my location you can 
see Wal-Mart and Wal-Mart has a northern and a southern side bus stop pick-up. 
I think it would be wise not to have a pick-up in front of the childcare center just 
because the playground is literally going to be 30 foot from it, 40 foot from it. So 
what I did was, if you flip the page, I just did a real quick map of bus shelters 
down 13 and there's plenty of space and there's currently plenty oflocations for 
bus shelters/pick-ups so ... I'd like not to put that there. I mean if that's an issue 
we can do that. I'm not looking to oppose anybody, but I just think that would be 
better suited not there because it's in eyesight of three or four pick-
ups .. .locations. My only real big concern with the conditions was the signage. 
I'm in the BG zone. I'm in the Growth Zone. We're a business. If you look at 
the map, I labeled all the current businesses down 13 that have lit pole signs, not 
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monument signs. I would like a lit pole sign. The reason being is you have about 
35 to 40,000 cars a day go down 13 and really with a monument sign .. .ifyou flip 
to the next page you can see the different types of monument signs, they're 
referring to the Wal-Mart monument sign. That monument sign is a secondary 
sign to Wal-Mart; Wal-Mart has a 30 to 40 foot post lit sign. So ... I took a picture 
of it at night so if you have an unlit monument sign you're going to see something 
to the right of it and that was last week. Below that, I took a picture of the 
monument sign they're referring to during rush hour and if you have a sign that's 
two foot, four foot off the ground with 30-40,000 cars a day going by you're not 
going to see it. So, I'd like to petition the Levy Court to allow me to have a lit 
post sign. If that's a problem, you know a lit monument sign would suffice ifl 
could get it high in the air a little bit, higher than a car. You have to go really up 
to Smyrna before you even see most monument signs; even on new buildings 
they're lit. Even though we're a learning center it's a business. We need to be 
able to advertise our business. The last page I did, just to kind of put everybody's 
mind at ease is our current pictures of our current center. I don't think you have 
to worry about the fa9ade or the demographics. It will be a professional looking 
building. Right now that center is stone exterior and then you can see how large 
the classrooms are, we modernize all that. Anyway, I just took a little bit oftime 
to put something together for the Levy Court just so hopefully it will answer 
some of the questions from the Planning Counsel. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you, Peter. Mr. Buckson has a question. 

Mr. Buckson: I was speaking to Mr. Angel. .. Commissioner Angel a second ago, 
but I'm familiar with your concern about the bus shelter and the sign. Help me 
out though the parking lot is not in conflict, right? You meet the standard ... 

Mr. Meyer: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Buckson: You were just pointing it out? 

Mr. Meyer: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Buckson: And the steps, the steps were required to be taken down or that 
was ... So we're okay with that, there's nothing here that says we need to address 
the steps? 

Ms. Keifer: No, what the recommendation was is that the plan simply include a 
notation that the second floor is only ancillary uses. 

Mr. Buckson: Gotcha. And you're okay with that? 

Mr. Meyer: Yes. 
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Mr. Buckson: As it's explained? So then really what we're focused on is the 
shelter and the signs, so ... I don't know, Mr. Angel. .. you know, what his 
thoughts are. I think you present a logical argument. I mean, I'm curious. 
The ... those are designated bus stops for essentially State of Delaware ... 

Ms. Keifer: The State does designate them so that's not within the County's 
power to take away. So our suggestion was you have a bus stop, let's put a bus 
shelter there, to provide cover. 

Mr. Buckson: I'll listen to Commissioner Angel. I think there's some merit in 
considering that but let me talk one thing about the sign. You're in an area where 
you've got a lot of signs, right? 

Mr. Meyer: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Buckson: That whole area? At some point in time we have to look at it and 
say, okay, but we need to start to address the clutter. Because it is sort of 
cluttered, there were no real regulations. So I guess what I'm looking for would 
be an option, a blended option. Because I think that we need to do it right and 
you're right, maybe a monument doesn't fairly advertise your business which is 
important, I get it. So I might be looking for. .. I'm not opposed to the digital 
signs, I think they're just the way of the world now and I'm certainly not opposed 
to listening to maybe something different than a static monument. I just was 
throwing that out there for conversation you know because I hadn't talked to you 
about this, alright? Thanks. 

Mr. Angel: Yes, when Mr. Buckson and I were discussing it. .. first for the Staff. 
On the bus stop, what's that cost? 

Ms. Keifer: I don't know off the top of my head what a bus shelter costs. 

Mr. Angel: And I'm sure it's not cheap because it's got to be built a certain size 
and regulation, right? 

Ms. Keifer: I suspect Del-DOT/DART has standards for their bus shelters but 
it's .. .I couldn't tell you what they cost. 

Mr. Angel: So why would we be asking a business to build this? I mean, I know 
it's for children and it's outside. This is the first time this has ever come since 
I've been a sitting Commissioner and that's why I'm asking. 

Ms. Keifer: Certainly most site plans that the Planning Commission sees that's a 
typical recommendation slash ... it becomes a requirement when they approve 
them. It's not an unusual recommendation. To be fair the Planning Commission 
probably sees more site plans because they're not conditional uses. 
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Mr. Angel: Mr. Meyer, on this I see a safety issue for, you know because it's 
glass or plexiglass, you can see kids. Most bus stops are enclosed on three sides 
and open on one and you can't see what's taking place. Are you ... do you have a 
problem with that? 

Mr. Meyer: If you look at the childcare centers in Kent County ... because I spent 
a lot of time driving around .. .I spent a good day to be honest with you driving 
around, you won't see a bus stop at childcare centers. You won't even see bike 
racks at childcare centers because parents don't drop kids off with bicycles. 
People don't bike down 13 and the last thing you want ... the most important thing 
for a learning center, childcare center is safety. You don't want people loitering 
around your playground, it's not wise. But I think what the Planning Commission 
is referring to is, because I wrote it out here, it says, the Staff recommends, it says 
supportive health, lifestyles, choices, opportunities as well as reduce air, water 
and noise pollution by requiring facilities such as sidewalks, transportation 
facilities, multiple paths and bike paths as part of the Transportation and Land 
Development projects. We ... there's no sidewalk there and I'm putting a sidewalk 
on there and that's a major expense. We are doing a retention water underground 
of the parking lot to take care of the water. That's a major expense. So you know 
I don't mind working with government, I think we all need to chip in but you 
know we're a small business so you know I feel like I'm kind of getting strong 
armed about that bus stop to be honest with you. But you know, I'm not going to 
let it not let me open. But Ijust .. .I don't think it's wise to do that and 
Commissioner Buckson's suggestion, I don't mind not getting a post sign, but I 
would like to maybe even just get a monument sign lit a little higher just so 
maybe it's a little above traffic. They are ... I understand that you guys want to 
curb all the signage but some of the new signs, the Wal-Mart and the real estate, 
retail next door and then Redner's right down from .. .I mean there ... we're not 
talking about two foot signs. We're talking about 20, 30, 40 foot signs. I'm not 
looking for that. But I do ... It's a business. I do need to be ... be able to let 
people know where we are. So that's all I was trying to do with this, is just 
trying to clarify some of the concerns with the planner and I wasn't trying to duck 
anything. I was just trying to be reasonable, that's all. 

Mr. Angel: Well I know signage along the roadway, digital is the way it's been 
going here and you know, either we get on ... we get off the broomstick and start 
doing what we're, you know getting into the future of doing this because it seems 
to be the way to go. It's also more costly too. And back, gosh years ago when the 
City of Dover decided to clean up their signs along Loockerman to get the 
overhangs offthe ... it was a safety issue as well as an eyesore and then now they 
have to put them face on the buildings. There's an issue for that too because 
people now are rubbemecking .. .look and trying to find a store if they don't know 
the area, so whereas if you came down the street you could see it. So I'd like to 
see something where you can .. .it's lit so you can see it. 

Mr. Meyer: Me too. 
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Mr. Angel: And I think what you bring up as far as being off the ground, maybe 
something off the building and I'm going to refer back to Staff on this. Is there 
anything that we could ... instead of having a monument type up on the building 
maybe try coming offthe comer of the building so that it can be seem from both 
directions? 

Ms. Keifer: The monument is still freestanding and I think what I'm hearing from 
the applicant is that it's not necessarily an objection to a monument sign but 
perhaps taller than the six foot above grade that was suggested. 

Mr. Meyer: Yeah, basically if I go by the suggestions a car driving by is going to 
block that sign and it's not lit so you give us another two months in December it's 
going to be dark at 5 o'clock. Well, parents are picking up at 6 o'clock so, you 
know I'm not looking for a Wal-Mart sign but I just want to put something up 
that's lit, that people can see. And it's probably going to need be about six foot 
off the ground because cars are probably about a good four or five foot. 

Mr. Angel: Well most trucks, pickup trucks and trucks would be blocking that 
anyway even at that level. So that's why I was thinking higher where you ... 

Mr. Meyer: I'm trying to compromise without being ... 

Ms. Keifer: Perhaps doubling the height rather than six, perhaps 12? 

Mr. Meyer: Yeah that ... I'd be great with that. I'd love to work with you. 

Mr. Angel: Sounds like a compromise. 

Mr. Meyer: Is .. .ifi may ask, so you're allowed to have a, possibly a monument 
sign with a ... a detached monument sign with a building sign then or not? 

Ms. Keifer: Yeah, you can do an attached and detached. 

Mr. Meyer: Okay. And then just to clarify the secondary means of egress for the 
rear, you are in favor or opposed to that? 

Ms. Keifer: The steps? 

Mr. Meyer: Yes, ma'am. 

Ms. Keifer: There's no objection to the steps as long as there's a note on the plan 
limiting the use of that second floor to ancillary uses to the primary. 

Mr. Meyer: Yeah, we can do ... yeah. 
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Mr. Angel: And I want to go back to the structure again. As ... so Staff and the 
RPC recommended it, the additional cost was him putting money into 
the ... underneath the parking lot for rain, water run-off. I see that as a more 
environmental issue and this is a safety issue but there's no real true safety ... 
Because we don't want kids standing in front of your daycare center, near a road. 
So that to me I think is a waste of money. 

Ms. Keifer: Just to be clear, the bus stop exists. That's not for us to determine, 
right? So not putting the shelter in doesn't make the bus stop go away. It's 
certainly Levy Court's choice whether to require the shelter. 

Mr. Meyer: If I may comment? This is a vacant lot that somebody put a sign up. 
I've owned it almost 10 years now and we were going to put retail up there and 
we went back in 2014 here, prior to that a gentleman was going to put a motel 
there. There's no ... there's a sign there that picks up but there are also two signs 
within visible distance right by the Wal-Mart north and south that you could 
easily catch. If it wasn't a childcare I'd be like alright I'll put the 5, 10 grand out 
and we're good. But it's not wise to have that next to a childcare center and 
playground. The playground's literally going to be 50 foot away. And the only 
thing that's going to separate that bus stop and that playground is a teacher and a 
fence, that's it. 

Mr. Angel: And a four foot fence? 

Mr. Meyer: Yeah, we'll probably do six foot but yeah. That's it. 

Mr. Sweeney: So Ms. Keifer, are Ordinance codes 205-43.2 that it sounds like it 
has guidelines for installation of a bus shelter. What are the circumstances that 
exist in this lot that require a bus shelter? Because I drive up and down Route 13 
two sometimes four times a day and its mostly just signs. I see very few bus 
shelters on Route 13 on northbound or southbound lanes. So what are we ... what 
is going on this property that's different then all the other properties that have just 
a single pole with the blue and white bus stop sign on it? 

Ms. Keifer: This one's actually going through a process, right? The requirements 
in the code are only triggered when something goes through a process. 

Mr. Sweeney: So if one of those other properties that have a bus stop, existing 
pole with a sign on it go through the process we would consider them for a shelter 
type ... 

Ms. Keifer: Yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. So again, in all my travelling's, and I hit that road 
anywhere between 6:30 and 9:30 in the morning and between 2:30 and 5:30 at 
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night I only see adults standing at those bus stops. I don't think this is a place 
where a bus is going to pull up, a school bus and drop kids off to run into your 
childcare center. 

Mr. Meyer: No. 

Mr. Sweeney: So, I'm not sure why we're addressing kids standing out at the bus 
stop. It's not for bus pickup like that. It's a DART bus stop where adults have 
DART passes to get on the DART bus. So I'm not sure ... 

Ms. Keifer: Staff isn't disputing that. Staffhas never made the argument that it's 
a bus stop for children. It's simply .. .it's a designated bus stop so we suggested 
the cover ... the enclosure. 

Mr. Sweeney: So is the Ordinance still recommendation for a bus stop or is it a 
requirement for a bus stop? 

Ms. Keifer: In this case it was just recommended. 

Mr. Sweeney: Alright, thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: We're beating it up a little bit. My angst isn't any of that at all. It 
is a bus stop. It's not Staff's decision. I think Staff does a nice job of suggesting 
options for us to decide. This is a suggestion and we're making a decision, that's 
all. I think their role is ... I think it's a little challenging for me to have small 
business have to pay for a shelter that's essentially in effect the State's resource. 
So that's really where I am. But I don't have a problem with the Staff requesting 
it. So, anyway ... So if you're making a motion to make it go away, I'm okay 
with that. 

Mr. Meyer: Thank you for your time. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-18-07 

Mr. Angel: I make a Motion to approve Application CS-18-07 on the northwest 
comer ofNorth DuPont Highway, US 13 and Rose Bowl Road, south of 
Cheswold without the bus stop and having the owner to pay for it and based on 
the RPC conditional approval and no opposition. And a 12 foot sign to be raised 
12 foot ... sorry, getting this last minute, 12 foot plus 64 square feet for the sign to 
be on that site; seconded by Mr. Buckson. 

Mr. Hosfelt: I do have a question on the sign. Is the sign lit? Do we agree to 
that? I didn't hear that in the motion. I know we increased the size of it but we 
didn't decide ... 
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Ms. Keifer: It is permitted, yes. 

Mr. Angel: It is lit. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, as per my motion. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, as per comments made. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, based on the reasons given and testimony by the applicant, yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated and the amendment of removing the bus 
sign by Commissioner Angel. 

Mr. Banta: Yeah, based on the Regional Planning Commission affirmative, Staff 
as well as the motion by Mr. Angel, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Application CS-18-07 has been approved. 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Application #I Name: CS-18-09 Frederica Park & Ride I Sports 

Medicine Facility; Applicant I Owner: Delaware Transit Corporation % 
Bill Thatcher I Kent County, A Political Subdivision of the State of 
Delaware; Zoning District I Proposed Use: AC (Agricultural 
Conservation) I Park & Ride I Sports Medicine Facility; Area & Location 
I ID#: 5.069 ±acres on the east side of Bay Road (DE Rt. 1) surrounded 
by South Frederica interchange improvements, southeast of Frederica I 
MD-00-141. 00-01-3 2. 01-0000 1 

Ms. Keifer: Application CS-18-09 is a conditional use site plan for a Park & 
Ride/Sports Medicine Facility. The site is zoned Agricultural Conservation, it's 
just over 5 acres on the east side of Route 1, surrounded by the Frederica 
interchange, southeast of Frederica. The Regional Planning Commission took 
testimony at their October 4th public hearing and at their October 11th business 
meeting voted unanimously to recommend conditional approval. The conditions 
again are detailed in your report from the commission, but in general, there was a 
request to waive the frontage sidewalk. RPC recommended granting that in favor 
of, instead providing pedestrian connection between this site and the sports 
complex. There were also recommendations regarding the fa<;ade of the building. 
The recommendation was that it match the fa<;ade of the existing building on the 
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sports complex so that we actually create a theme within the area. And there was 
also recommendation with respect to a monument sign also in keeping with the 
architectural design of the complex. So again it comes with a recommendation 
for approval, I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Application CS-18-09 

IN FAVOR 

Gregg Moore, Becker Morgan Group, 309 South Governors Avenue, Dover, DE: 
We have a brief power point to describe the project. At the top of the page in the 
yellow lines you can see there the sports complex and just to the bottom right, that 
small blue building is the, what we call the medical office building. In the center 
of that 5 acre parcel, another parcel is actually under lease by the DE Turf and the 
DE Turf is responsible for bring the groups together that are before you tonight. 
This project's actually being done by DTC, Delaware Transit Corporation and 
DE Turf as you know, and the DE Turf 5 acre area lease and that is the blow up of 
the property. You can see the entrance from the service road that's there, into the 
roughly 265 parking spot zone; the blue roof is the medical office building that 
we're proposing. DTC is leading the project for the Park & Ride, they're building 
all the parking and the entrances and all of those facilities and the medical users 
of the building are building, funding and operating the building. So there had 
been confusion as to who was building the building. It's not DTC. This is a 
cooperative effort between the two through the DE Turf. There will be a bus 
shelter. How poignant that there was a bus shelter in your last project. We're 
actually putting these because this Park & Ride is going to act just like the one in 
Middletown, if you're familiar with it up on Route 1, where you can pull your car 
in, you can get on the bus and go north and south. Bill Thatcher from DTC has 
been to the hearings previously and been making presentations about how 
strategic this location is for Kent County because they're going to be running 
buses from Rehoboth to Wilmington, and you'll be able to park here and catch a 
bus either direction. There will also be charging units here for electric vehicles 
and they'll be in this facility so you can pull in and charge your car if you have an 
electric car. So the Storm water Management facility located in the center of the 
road, you can actually see that to the left, is actually serving this project and it's 
large enough to do that so there won't be any additional Stormwater facilities 
here. The one last comment that we will make is that we do agree with the Staff's 
recommendations. In red there, you can see that the location of the sidewalk to 
connect into the DE Turf, there is a crosswalk being installed across the service 
road. We just have one request, we don't disagree that it's a good comment. We 
do want to ask for the ability to possibly put in an alternate material rather than 
concrete. And that might be a wider material. .. excuse that might be a wider path, 
that is mulch. That's due to the cost and we're estimating that's about 
$110,000.00. And/or we would like the ability for that sidewalk to be somewhat 
delayed to allow us to get our project going and we might have to do some 
fundraising to pay for that. So we'd like that recommendation amended to allow 
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with the alternate material if you can see fit to do that. With that, I'll be glad to 
answer any questions you might have about the project. 

Bill Strickland, 37 Maple Dale Road, Dover, DE: Good evening 
Commissioners. As the board chair of the Kent County Regional Sports 
Complex, Board of Directors, I respectfully request that you support this petition. 
This is truly a win-win in that we have the Delaware Transit Corporation wants to 
build a Park & Ride. We need parking, we being the DE Turf. We have a good 
problem. We need more parking and the joint use agreement with the Delaware 
Transit Corporation gives the Park & Ride to the community and importantly 
provides additional parking for the DE Turf. The medical office complex 
referenced is First State Orthopedics which is a significant contributor, partner to 
the Kent County Regional Sports Complex. Its significance really lies in two 
areas. Number 1, it provides immediate medical attention to athletes that might 
sustain an injury while at the complex. That's very big for us. And secondarily 
they are a significant financial contributor through their sponsorships of fields. 
Four sponsorships are directly attributable to the influence of First State 
Orthopedics. And with looming competition coming from the south and 
potentially from the north, we are very much looking for ways to enhance our 
fmancial position and the partnership with First State Orthopedics really does that 
for us. So respectfully, I would ask that you support this petition. Thank you. 

Mr. Buckson: Not only do I support, it I want to make sure that ... I feel the need, 
compelled whenever I see folks in public to acknowledge your effort to yourself, 
Ms. Cecchett, Mr. Moore, Ms. Parkowski. It's the continuation of things like this, 
the vision that you have that's going to help to make this thing be a long term 
success. So, I just want to say thank you. Keep up the good work. 

Mr. Strickland: Thank you, thank you, Commissioners. 

IN OPPOSITION 

Kathryn Murphy, 3338 Bay Road, Milford, DE: Yes, so I just have a couple of 
questions because I live there, and I wanted to ask them. What is the significance 
of the bus situation that's going to be coming up and down the Milford Neck 
Road? So, it looks like the buses are going to be going right and left, yes? So as 
a person who lives here and you all have seen us come before, you as well I'm 
curious about that. Because there was a lot of problems in the past with the 
Milford Neck Road and all this ... you know that's going on with all the 
construction on Route 1. And so, I'm just curious as to what are the numbers? 
How many buses are coming and going and how's that going to play out, because 
I haven't heard any information from that. 

Mr. Buckson: It's not that I don't want to answer it but why generalize when I 
can be more exact if I ask Mr. Strickland maybe to address that, or to Mr. Moore, 
one of the experts. I can tell you the expectation is that we're going to use the 
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new infrastructure and it won't inject anywhere into the ... Well, let me just stop. 
Go ahead. 

Mr. Moore: The answer to this question is all buses will go out of this facility and 
turn left, none will turn right. There is not a route that will turn right to go down 
that road. All will go to Route 1 and they will be the normal hourly service that 
Del-DOT provides ... or DTC provides up and down the State, it will not be a 
special route. 

Mr. Buckson: Any generalized number of buses? One per hour, one per day or is 
it too hard to tell? 

Mr. Moore: I believe it's one per hour. Bill Thatcher from DTC was to be here 
tonight and got waylaid in a meeting in New Castle County. He would know that 
answer but it will be the State's normal bus program and it will not be changed for 
this project. 

Mr. Buckson: Would you mind getting me that information if it's possible and I 
can relay it to Mrs. Murphy? 

Mr. Moore: Sure. 

Mr. Buckson: Thanks. 

Mrs. Murphy: Also with this walking right across it at Milford Neck Road, so is 
that going to be elevated where people will be safely up or are they actually 
crossing that road? 

Mr. Buckson: Ms. Keifer, you're actually portraying that it will be a walk-thru, 
right? 

Ms. Keifer: They're actually crossing that road, yeah. 

Mrs. Murphy: So they're actually crossing that road? Okay. And that's found to 
be safe? I mean, I drive on that road every day numerous times a day to go the 
opposite direction now, you know because I can't turn around anymore because 
the tum-around got closed off. So it's going to be a safe place ... I mean, 
everything that's been talked about with all of this construction for the past few 
years is all about safety and I'm just making sure that everybody's considering 
everything. You know, because ifwe're looking at little kids going across the 
road to ... You know, and this is a big tum-around that everybody's coming off of 
Route 1 and it's thousands of cars and if this is going to be a medical facility 
where anybody can go to them and I know we're talking that it's the Turf but this 
is a facility that was talked about at the RPC that anybody can go to, it's like a 
Doc-In-the Box, right? You get injured you can go. So it's going to bring traffic 
either way that can attend this place and anybody who wants to use Park & Ride 
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can use Park & Ride because anybody can use the bus. Is that accurate? So I just 
want to be sure that there's going to be safety for families walking across the 
street, kids walking across the street because you know, it's going to be an active 
place. Which is great, you know. I want to see this successful like everybody 
else does. I just want to be sure that, you know families crossing from this area 
are going to do it safely and it's not going to be a problem. 

Mr. Buckson: Valid point, good points. I don't know if Mr. Moore wants to add 
something to it? 

Mr. Moore: The Del-DOT crosswalk will meet all Del-DOT standards for safety 
and design and implementation and that's not an issue. 

Mr. Banta: Thanks, Gregg. 

Mrs. Murphy: Thank you. 

Mr. Banta: Thank you very much. 

Public Hearing Closed on Application CS-18-09 

Mr. Buckson: I'd like to recommend approval ... conditional approval of 
Application CS-18-09; it's a conditional use site plan for Park & Ride/Sports 
Medicine Facility. It's located outside the Growth Zone Overlay District. It's 
based on Exhibit A, Staff Recommendation Report dated October 4, 2018, Exhibit 
B referenced in the Public Hearing dated October 4, 2018. The fmding of fact 
that the subject site is zone AC, General Business so this is a permitted 
conditional use, the application complies with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
applicant agrees to conditions "a" through "d" referenced on page 2 in your 
packet, to include in section "a" an agreement to complete a pedestrian sidewalk 
or I alternate material for connection along the access road. That's my Motion; 
seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, for the reasons given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons stated, no opposition. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. 
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Mr. Banta: Based on Regional Planning Commission, Staff and Mr. Buckson's 
motion I would vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC18-12 has been approved. 

PETITIONS TO AMEND COMPREHENSIVE MAP 
AND ZONING MAP 

Mr. Sweeney: 
1. Ordinance LC 18-12, An Ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan 

Map Designation and the Official Zoning Map of Kent County, Delaware 
pursuant to the provisions ofKent County Code, Vol. II, Chapter 205 
Zoning, Article III, Section 205-8 and Section 205-9, and Article XXVIII 
(changes and amendments) effective December 01, 2000, as amended. 
(Reference: Application No. CZ-18-06; Applicant & Owner: Bryan C. & 
Salina M. Crothers; Proposed Zoning District: AC (Agricultural 
Conservation); Area & Location I ID#: 2.24 +I- acres on the northwest 
side of Willow Grove Rd (DE Rt. 10) between Boss Brown Lane and 
Paynters Way, south of and adjacent to the Town of Camden I NM-00-
093.00-02-42.00-000) 

Ms. Keifer: Ordinance LC 18-12 is an application to amend both the 
Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning Map designation. Currently the site is 
shown as industrial in the plan. The proposed plan would be Low Density 
Residential. It's currently zoned IL, Limited Industrial and the proposal is to 
rezone it to AC, Agricultural Conservation. The site's just over 2 acres, northwest 
of Willow Grove Road, between Boss Brown Lane and Paynters Way, south of 
and adjacent to the Town of Camden. It is indeed inside the Growth Zone. The 
Regional Planning Commission took testimony at their October 4th hearing; at 
their October 11th business meeting they voted to recommend ... they voted 
unanimously to recommend approval ofthe Ordinance siting that the proposal is 
indeed in keeping with the character of the area. So again this comes with a 
recommendation for approval, I'm happy to answer any questions you might 
have. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LC18-12 

IN FAVOR 

Bryan Crothers, 11361 Willow Grove Road, Camden, DE: Under 
recommendations from the Zoning and Planning Department I needed to look at 
re-zoning the property because it was zoned IL which meant that I could not run 
my home based business. So, looking to rezone it to AC and have a home based 
business. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Thank you, Mr. President. Mr. Crothers is that the place where the 
buses usually are? 

Mr. Crothers: Yes, sir. 

Mr. Sweeney: So you service the buses there as well? Or not anymore? 

Mr. Crothers: They are being parked there. 

Mr. Sweeney: You don't service them, they're just parked there? 

Mr. Crothers: No, sir. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay. How long have you been ... you're here trying to right a 
wrong? 

Mr. Crothers: Pretty much, yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: So you've been servicing bikes there for a while? 

Mr. Crothers: We went to settlement ... me buying the property in April. And 
since then I've been working on cleaning the place up and trying to make it a little 
bit more presentable. 

Mr. Sweeney: Excellent. That's good to hear. So I live on Moose Lodge Road 
and I know there's at least two residences on Moose Lodge Road that do service 
motorcycles and they use Moose Lodge Road extensively for ... shall I say high 
speed tests. So ... 

Mr. Crothers: That was many years ago in my life's time and I. .. 

Mr. Sweeney: I appreciate that. Just know I'm in favor of this. I don't have a 
problem with it but if you're going to use Moose Lodge Road I do take pictures of 
motorcycle licenses as they go by running 65, 70, 80 miles an hour or popping 
wheelies because I do have ... I know one residence pops wheelies down the road 
all the time and I've gotten license plate numbers, so ... 

Mr. Crothers: I try not to work on sport bikes. 

Mr. Sweeney: There you go. Thank you very much. 

Mr. Pepper: Just out of curiosity, why was this property zone IL? Do we have 
any idea? 

Ms. Keifer: It's original zoning; it most likely has to do with whatever use was in 
effect when the County adopted zoning. 
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Mr. Pepper: That's typically a difficult zoning to get. 

Mr. Crothers: The only thing I can think of is ... 

Mr. Pepper: Hate to give it up. 

Mr. Sweeney: Harold did some ... 

Mr. Crothers: Harold did some funny things. 

Mr. Sweeney: He did some lawnmower repairs and stuff like that on that site, but 
that's for the last dozen years or so he was doing that kind of work. 

Mr. Crothers: It's been quite a while, yes, and there was a lot of Camden Public 
Storage of sewer pipes there, which are now gone. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yeah and I think he also stored some trucks there and some 
equipment and that might have been why. It might have been a Camden 
requirement. 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Ordinance LC18-12 

Mr. Sweeney: Sarah, correct me ifl'm wrong, Sarah or Kris. There are no 
outstanding, extra conditional requirements for this, correct? 

Ms. Keifer: Not for zoning. 

Mr. Sweeney: Okay, fine. In that case, I Move to approve Ordinance LC18-12, 
no public opposition, it is in compliance with other AC zone properties around the 
site, Mr. Crothers has already stated that he's trying to clean up a mess, which we 
appreciate so, my motion is to approve; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, due to Staff and no opposition. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on Staff recommendation, no public opposition. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, no public opposition. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, all reasons stated. 
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Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated, plus my motion. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, based on the Regional Planning Commission, Staff, 
Mr. Sweeney's motion and no opposition, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 18-12 has been approved. 

ORDINANCE RE-ADOPTING THE 
KENT COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

Mr. Buckson: 

10/23/2018 

1. Ordinance LC18-17, An Ordinance Re-Adopting the 2018 Kent County 
Comprehensive Plan 

Ms. Keifer: As the Levy Court will recall the Comprehensive Plan was adopted 
in September. We then went to the Cabinet Committee on State Planning Issues. 
In that time we discovered that Map 7B, the Future Land Use Map, while the map 
is correct when it printed the coloration of the industrial areas was incorrect. 
Practically speaking it does not have an impact on any ofthe Land Use strategies, 
this is a completely separate map intended to completely match our zoning map. 
But the Cabinet Committee asked us to, if the Levy Court would simply reaffirm 
approval of the Plan with the technical error fixed and you'll see on the screen 
that the technical error has been fixed. So again our request is simply to reaffirm 
the Adoption of the Plan. I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Ordinance LC18-17 

IN FAVOR- None 

IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Ordinance LC18-17 

Mr. Buckson: I Move to approve Ordinance LC18-17, Re-adopting the 2018 
Comprehensive Plan and correcting the technical error on Map 7B, Future Land 
Use; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the reasons given. 
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Mr. Howell: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, all reasons stated. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all reasons given by Mr. Buckson. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Ordinance LC 18-17 has been approved. 

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS 

Mr. Angel: 
1. Resolution 3718, A Resolution to extend the Kent County Stormwater 

Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the Delaware Code 
and Section 90.4.E(l0), Chapter 187 ofthe Kent County Code- Lakeshore 
Village- SWM-14-05 

Ms. Keifer: Resolution 3718 creates the, or adds the Lakeshore Village to the 
Storm water Maintenance District. A majority of the lot owners have signed the 
petition in the affirmative. Those signatures have been verified by our Staff. All 
repairs have been completed and verified by KCD. The operation and 
maintenance plan has been finalized. The annual fee adopted by the Levy Court 
is $28.00 per parcel per year. For this project billing will commence in the FY20, 
or the calendar year 2019 tax bill in the amount of$56.00 to cover FY19 and 
FY20. It meets all of the conditions for inclusion in the District, Staff 
recommends approval and I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Resolution 3718 

IN FAVOR 

Charles Sevier, 158 Ryhill Drive, Lakeshore Village, Dover, DE: Good evening, 
Commissioners, Director, Officers. On behalf of Lakeshore Village Homeowners 
Association, Inc. the Executive Board asks the Stormwater Maintenance ... that the 
Kent County Levy Court to be allowed to join the Stormwater Maintenance 
District as outlined in Delaware Code and Kent County Code. We have achieved 
as Ms. Keifer has remarked the 51 percent of the members affirmative vote to 
satisfy the *INAUDIBLE* stipulations and we want to thank also Ms. Keifer and 
Ms. Michelle Brown of Kent County Planning for assistance to reach this goal, 
twice. But we made it. Also we appreciate Jared ... Director. .. engineer Jared 
Adkins and our contact Sean Miller of Kent Conservation District to accomplish 
the Stormwater Maintenance standards necessary for conveyance to Kent County. 
We respectfully ask for your support in this situation. Any questions? 
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IN OPPOSITION- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Resolution 3718 

Mr. Angel: Before I make a vote, Charlie it's great, it's good to see you. We've 
walked all seven of those ponds when I could walk. So I can't wait to do it again, 
tell you the truth. Having said that I'd like to make a motion on Resolution 3718. 
I Move to approve the Resolution to extend the Kent County Stormwater 
Management District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the Delaware Code and 
Section 90.4.E (1 0), Chapter 187 in the Kent County Code, Lakeshore Village, 
Stormwater Management-14-05; seconded by Mr. Pepper. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, no opposition and it's well warranted. 

Mr. Buckson: Before I make a vote and I am in favor. Is this Mr. Wilson's old 
neighborhood? No? Forgive me; I'll move on then. Okay, long story short I am 
in support of this, no public opposition. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, based on the comments given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, reasons given. Over time this has saved the homeowners a lot 
of money and it's a good program, so yes. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. Mr. Sevier let me tell you that every 
Homeowner's Association I go to that has stormwater ponds I push heavily for 
those homeowners to get involved in our Stormwater District Program. 
Congratulations on you guys' successfully making this happen for your 
development. My vote's yes. 

Mr. Banta: Yes, for all reasons stated. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Resolution 3718 has been approved. 

Mr. Buckson: 
1. Resolution 3719, A Resolution to extend the Kent County Stormwater 

Maintenance District pursuant to Chapter 52, Title 9 of the Delaware Code 
and Section 90.4.E(l0), Chapter 187 ofthe Kent County Code- Hunters 
Ridge- SWM-18-03 

Ms. Keifer: Resolution 3719 adds Hunters Ridge subdivision into the Stormwater 
Maintenance District. Again the majority of lot owners have signed the petition 
in the affirmative. The signatures have been verified by our Staff. Again, the 



M-18-206 

25 10/23/2018 

adopted fee is $28.00 per year. In this case as with the previous, instead of a mid
year billing cycle two years' worth will be billed in FY20, so a total of $56.00. 
Hunters Ridge meets the criteria for joining the District, Staff recommends 
approval and I'm happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Public Hearing Open on Resolution 3719 

IN FAVOR- None 

IN OPPOSITON- None 

Public Hearing Closed on Resolution 3719 

Mr. Buckson: I make a ... well, finding that the proposed Storm water 
Maintenance District expansion is adequate and appropriate; that all property 
owners within the district are benefited directly or indirectly thereby; and that it is 
in the public interest to extend to extend the stormwater maintenance district in 
the manner proposed, I Move to approve Resolution 3719, creating the Hunters 
Ridge Stormwater Maintenance District; seconded by Mr. Sweeney. 

Roll Call 

Mr. Angel: Yes, reasons stated by Commissioner Buckson. 

Mr. Buckson: Yes, for reasons stated. 

Mr. Hosfelt: Yes, for the reasons given. 

Mr. Howell: Yes, reasons given. 

Mr. Pepper: Yes, for reasons given. Also, again this is a great program. It will 
save the homeowners a lot of money and a lot of grief in the future. 

Mr. Sweeney: Yes, for all reasons stated. Again this is, like Commissioner 
Pepper stated one of the best programs Kent County has come up with in the last 
dozen years. 

Mr. Banta: A great program, I vote yes. 

Roll Call reveals seven (7) yeas. Resolution 3719 has been approved. 

OLD BUSINESS -None 

NEW BUSINESS -None 

OTHER BUSINESS 
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Mr. Pepper: I Move to go into Executive Session immediately following 
the Business Meeting for preliminary discussion on site acquisition for a publicly 
funded capital improvement; legal strategy session regarding collective bargaining or 
pending or potential litigation; and personnel matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 
10004(b) (2), (4), and (9); seconded by Mr. Angel; carried by Roll Call vote six (6) 
yeas; one ( 1) absent. 

Mr. Pepper: I Move to go into Executive Session immediately following the 
Committee Meetings ofNovember 13, 2018 for preliminary discussion on site 
acquisition for a publicly funded capital improvement; legal strategy session 
regarding collective bargaining or pending or potential litigation; and personnel 
matters pursuant to 29 Del. C. 1 0004(b) (2), ( 4 ), and (9); seconded by and 
Mr. Sweeney; carried by Roll Call vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

Mr. Sweeney: On Sunday Commissioner Pepper, Commissioner Howell and 
myselfhad the opportunity to attend the annual4-H Awards banquet where we 
gave out the male 4-H' er of the Year Award to Christopher Wood and the female 
4-H'er of the Year to Hannah O'Hara who accepted the award via video and we 
got our pictures taken in front of a video. One of the statistics that always comes 
out of this annual event is the number of annual hours that 4-H'ers give back to 
the community and I think it was 5,217 something, point 95. But the total came 
to nearly $45,000.00 at the Delaware minimum wage rate of $8.75 an hour. 
$45,000 worth of community time and a lot of that has to do with Parks, senior 
centers, visiting nursing homes that. .. these are just things that these kids are 
getting involved in and that will make them leaders in the future. And I'm glad I 
am leaving it to these kids, leaving our future to them. 

Mr. Pepper: A further breakdown on that 5,000 hours that's a 124 work weeks, 
which is about 2 Yz years' work so they did an outstanding job. There was 200 or 
so people there, great food and a great program. It is enjoyed by everyone and 
they certainly did appreciate Levy Court being there and making the 
presentations. It was great and I might add as a former 4-H'er myself it was great 
to hear my granddaughter receive an award. 

Mr. Sweeney: It was only 2-H where Commissioner Pepper was in. 

Mr. Pepper: Yeah, true. 

Mr. Angel: First of all, I want to thank you all for the sponsorship for the gala for 
the Modem Maturity Center. As you know, our Modem Maturity Center here in 
Delaware is the biggest in the whole State. And the fundraiser that we held on the 
13th of October raised a little over $116,000 for our seniors. So thank you very 
much, it's greatly appreciated and those programs and those seniors will definitely 
thrive. Also this past Saturday .. .! want to thank Mr. Petit de Mange, Mr. Hosfelt, 
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Mr. Howell, Mr. Sweeney, President Banta, Mr. Pepper and myself for the 75th 
anniversary of the Little Creek Fire Company which was held at Cheswold. It 
was great to see the camaraderie of the fire groups come together to help Little 
Creek hold their funding ... or their anniversary. And I can't remember how many 
times it was said about the 75th and the place being burned down it seems as if 
history repeats itself over and over every night, the same thing but as the night 
went on it got a little more interesting and other historical facts. But I want to 
thank you gentlemen for that support. 

Mr. Pepper: One other historical event that was held at Little Fire Hall, 40 years 
ago I had my wedding reception there. So it's hard to believe that the fire 
company was only 35 years old then. But they're a great fire company, they do a 
lot in the community and they do a lot of training, proud of them. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS -None 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS- None 

Motion to adjourn by Mr. Sweeney; seconded by Mr. Pepper; carried by Roll Call 
vote six (6) yeas; one (1) absent. 8:24p.m. 

enda Wootten 
Kent County Clerk of the Peace 


